City of Seattle Request for Proposal 
Addendum 4
Issued on 12/18/15

The following is additional information regarding Invitation to Bid/Request for Proposal # Early Learning Data System released on 12/07/15.  The due date and time for responses is 01/11/16 @ 3pm PST (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers and revisions to the RFP. This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	
	12/09/15
	
	In addition to the City’s standard Insurance Requirements, we are requiring additional coverage in Crime/Employee Theft, Technology E&O, and Network Security/Cyber Liability Coverage. Please see insurance requirements embedded.  Please note that evidence of insurance is not due at the time of proposal submittal, but before contract award – if your company is selected.
	Page 22 of the RFP document, please replace the embedded document under Attachment #1 Insurance Requirements with the following:
                  
[image: image1.emf]DEEL_Risk_Managem ent_Checklist_11_13_15.pdf



	2
	
	12/09/15
	
	The RFP Pre-Proposal is 12/15/15 not 12/16/15. 
	Page 1 of the RFP document, please replace TABLE 1 – SOLICITATION SCHEDULE with the following table:
Event 

Date

RFP Release 

12/7/15

Pre-Proposal Conference

12/15/15 @ 1:30pm PST

Deadline for Questions

12/28/2015 @ 5pm PST

Sealed Proposals Due to the City

1/11/16 @3pm PST



	3
	12/11/15
	12/15/15
	Are you open to a phased approach to implementation of the system? i.e. start using a system with many key components (or minimum viable product) and add on other pieces and data integration interfaces iteratively?
	Yes - DEEL understands it may be necessary to implement the proposed solution in phases.
	

	4
	12/11/15
	12/14/15
	Will you publish a list of the people or vendors who attend the pre-proposal conference?
	Yes – the list of attendees to the Pre-proposal conference, as well as those who have dialed-in will be posted onto our bid blog the next day. 
	

	5
	12/11/15
	12/18/15
	In Appx E: Mandatory Technical Requirements, row #10, Provide an independent test report… – Is this documentation that needs to be included when we submit the proposal or just if we win it? There are a few other rows with a similar requirement, and we have the same question: Do we need to submit them with the proposal or at some later date?
	This is documentation we would need to have prior to promoting the application to PRODUCTION.  All significant vulnerabilities would need to be addressed prior to approval being provided for the PRODUCTION move.  There are a number of services and tools out there to accomplish this from recognizable and reputable sources.  They are generally not expensive.  If the vendor is financially unable to contract for this service, we can provide this service at no cost.  Ideally, if the vendor has an existing product (not yet prepared to City of Seattle requirements) against which the vulnerability scanner can be run, that preliminary report will help identify issues at the foundation that will need to be addressed.  To reiterate however, this scan must be successfully run prior to promotion to PRODUCTION with all critical and high vulnerabilities addressed along with achieving a sufficiently low HARM score.
	

	6
	12/15/15
	12/16/15
	Do you permit a vendor hosted solution and if so, would you still want to impose Active Directory? 
	In regards to a vendor hosted solution (including SaaS), requirement should be to integrate with the City's Active Directory for the purposes of authenticating any City employees to the solution.  The City of Seattle has a deployed Active Directory Federation Server that currently supports Vendor Hosted solutions using both SAML or Shibboleth type claims.

AD FS Overview
https://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/hh831502.aspx
Understanding Key AD FS concepts
https://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ee913566.aspx
AD FS Wiki Article
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Active_Directory_Federation_Services
High-level process involves the exchanging of federation metadata / certificates to establish the federation trust.  This work would be joint between the vendor and DoIT/SeaIT staff.



	

	7
	12/15/15
	12/18/15
	With relatively small number of users, would you still want to host on a dedicated server? 
	Hosted solutions are ok and user count will not factor in to the total cost of ownership for the solution.  We are focused on security and value rather than dedicated vs shared tenancy.


	

	8
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	Regarding Space, if we propose a web base solution, how long would you anticipate wanting the vendor to be on-site, and should we include our expenses there for that? 
	Space - We would like to ask vendors to propose how much time you think you will need onsite during implementation.  
Travel Expenses: The Pricing Offer Sheet (Mandatory Submittal) embedded in page 17 of the RFP document contains a line item for any anticipated Travel Expenses. Please submit your anticipated travel expenses in the price offer sheet. 
	

	9
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	Will the City consider a configurable Commercial Off the Shelf (COTS) solution the City already has? 
	YES
	

	10
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	Can the City share the anticipated budget for the system?
	The budget range is approximately 

$300 - $375K to include development and implementation in 2016.
	

	11
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	On page 19 of the RFP document under Round 2 and Round 3 the terms “The City” and “The Team” seem to be used interchangeably?
	The terms “The City” and “The Team” should be considered the same under pertaining to the Evaluation Section of the RFP document. The Team is the evaluation team that is set up on behalf of the City to score the proposals that are submitted that may be composed of technical experts, end users, administrators, etc. 

	

	12
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	Could you explain how generalizable this system is to other districts or Local Education Agency’s (LEA)s who may be interested or have the opportunity to buy off of this contract? Is your request generalizable across other Washington State districts and the initiatives they will be putting in place?
	The Department of Education and Early Learning (DEEL) is not an LEA.
In terms of similarities between this system and a system a school district may have (student information systems, etc) there are similarities to elements that we are asking for in this RFP process in terms of child management, ability to link a child to a class, ability to allow a teacher to record information; however, we would be looking to have that a payment aspect and enrollment and selection process application. 
The City will not be scoring the RFP proposals with an eye for being able to expand this for someone else in our region. 
	

	13
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	Is the City looking for a vendor that has delivered this type of system before or a vendor who can provide the functionalities that the city desires? 
	The City is looking for a the strongest proposal that has a combination of having the ability to meet the requirements we are requesting; and putting forth in the Management Response form a confident reply in a way that will meet our needs.
Everything we are scoring on appears in Management Response.
	

	14
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	Could the City provide additional detail around the requirements around the process of the online statements? 
	In terms of accepting payments online, the payments online would be from the parents of the students enrolled in the preschool programs. 
	

	15
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	Are you currently managing the lottery system manually? 
	Yes- in an Excel Spreadsheet. Currently we are serving 288 students, but anticipate growth in students so we are looking for a system to scale up with the growth. 

	

	16
	12/15/15
	12/15/15
	How much level of effort is the City willing to put tweak the system to make it ‘ours’? 
	There are ordinances that the City is required to meet. The City fully realizes that there are resource constraints in time and money. With that said, we understand there are trade-offs along the way but we have put forth in this RFP a ‘scored’ section to help us realize what the City can reasonably implement. 
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Risk Management Checklist – FAS City Purchasing 
DEPARTMENT TO COMPLETE ALL FIELDS ON THIS PAGE.   
Low – Med High Risk - SEND COMPLETED CHECKLIST TO BUYER WITH YOUR BLANKET CONTRACT REQUEST OR REQUISITION     
High Risk - SEND COMPLETED CHECKLIST to Risk Management (Sheila.Barker@seattle.gov or Keith.Ayling@seattle.gov) 
 
    


PROJECT NAME: DEEL data system  DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT:        DEPT& DIV:DEEL  TEL EXT:        
ONE BOX BELOW MUST BE CHECKED FOR EACH RISK ELEMENT – DO NOT LEAVE ALL FOUR BOXES UNCHECKED 
 


RISK ELEMENT      LOW  M    MEDIUM  MEDIUM HIGH                 HIGH   - SEND TO RISK MANAGEMENT 


                             *Attach Scope of Work for complex projects, Professional Service & IT  


CONTRACT VALUE       UP TO $100k            $100k-$500k       $500k-$1 M   $1M 
 


MOTOR VEHICLES      None or FOB Common Carrier   Autos/Small Trucks             Large Trucks   Cranes/Heavy Equipment 
*Check “MEDIUM” or higher if Vendro must use their own vehicle to complete any part of the Scope of Work 
 


AIRCRAFT        None/Airlines        Chartered Fixed-Wing        Chartered Helicopter  Non-Professional Pilot 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL        No RCRA* levels     Some RCRA* level               Truckload RCRA* level  Multi-truckload RCRA* LEVEL 
* Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (1978) http://dnr.wi.gov/org/aw/rr/cleanup/haz_waste_docs/hazwaste_ppt.pdf     
 


WATERCRAFT      None           <26FT Excl-NavWa*   46-65FT or Incl NavWa  NavWa Incl Master and Crew 
*NavWa = Navigable Waterways - http://your.kingcounty.gov/dnrp/library/water-and-land/shorelines/map-folio/technical-appendix/wdnr-navigable-waters-map.pdf 


 MARITIME WC      None in *NavWa                   NavWa Excl-Divers  NavWa Incl Divers 
 


GARAGE RISK      No Vehicle Bailment                        Parking Lot                      Vehicle Modification/Storage           Tow Truck/On-Hook 
 


PROFESSIONAL       None                                   ? Any Prof Services listed below*   


SERVICES                            
(Architectural/engineering(A/E), environmental, geotechnical, real estate, medical, laboratory, surveying, mapping, Construction Management/Administration or high-level Technical/Strategic Management Consulting) 
 


IT /Technology/       None    Off-the-Shelf,         x  Any other IT/Tech* 


SAAS                    no security issues      
 


Credit Card Payment   None          x  Any Credit Card or PCI use or involvement 


Processing            (Provide embedded, PCI Questionnaire to Risk Management-) 


               


Inusurance_Quest4 


E-Paymt Processing_2015.docx
 


 


If “AIRCRAFT” =  MEDIUM  or MEDIUM HIGH, check  “AVIATION LIABILITY” and insert MINIMUM LIMIT of $1,000,000 limit for MEDIUM; $5,000,000 for MEDIUM HIGH. 
 


If “ENVIRONMENTAL”= MEDIUM  or MEDIUM HIGH, check “CONTRACTOR’S POLLUTION LIABILITY” box with $1,000,000 limit. 
 


If “GARAGE” = MEDIUM  or MEDIUM HIGH, check “GARAGE KEEPER’S LEGAL LIABILITY” box on next page with minimum limit for EACH VEHICLE and for EACH OCCURRENCE 


commensurate with respective maximum per vehicle and aggregate values of all non-owned vehicles in vendor’s custody at its largest facility. 
 
 
 


Form Completed By:             Date:        



mailto:Sheila.Barker@seattle.gov

mailto:Keith.Ayling@seattle.gov

http://dnr.wi.gov/org/aw/rr/cleanup/haz_waste_docs/hazwaste_ppt.pdf

http://your.kingcounty.gov/dnrp/library/water-and-land/shorelines/map-folio/technical-appendix/wdnr-navigable-waters-map.pdf
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THIS PAGE TO BE COMPLETED ONLY BY FAS CITY PURCHASING or RISK MANAGEMENT 


  STANDARD Insurance 


 NON-STANDARD ADDITIONAL COVERAGES OR INCREASED LIMITS (Coordinate with Risk Management when any HIGH RISK boxes are marked) 
 


Transfer any NON-STANDARD ADDITIONAL COVERAGES OR INCREASED LIMITS to the Insurance Transmittal Form  and attach to ITB/RFP.   


 
REQUIRED COVERAGES AND MINIMUM LIMITS (STANDARD INSURANCE in purple; ADDITIONAL COVERAGES AND/OR INCREASED LIMITS OF LIABILITY in red.) 


STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIRED:   


 Commercial General Liability (CGL) or equivalent insurance  
   XCU and Subsidence Perils not excluded 
  Products/Completed Operations. Additional l Insured 


  Automobile Liability insurance  


   In-Transit Pollution Liability CA 99 48/Mcs-90 
    Garage Keeper’s Legal Liability (GKLL) with minimum limit of liability of $        each vehicle and $       each occurrence.    
   “On-Hook” GKLL coverage required with minimum limit of liability of $      each vehicle. 


   Worker's Compensation insurance 


 
 ADDITIONAL COVERAGES AND/OR INCREASED LIMITS:  


  Umbrella/Excess /Bumbershoot Liability with minimum limits of liability of  $1,000,000  or $      CSL.  ($      CSL Minimum Total Limits) 
  Contractor’s Pollution Liability insurance with minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000  or $      each claim. 
  Aviation Liability insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 or  $      CSL. 


   Professional Liability (E&O) insurance with minimum limits of liability $1,000,000 or  $     each claim 
  Watercraft/P&I insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 or  $      CSL. 
  Ship Repairer’s or Marina Operator’s Legal Liability insurance with minimum limits of liability of $      each vessel 
  Federal Maritime insurance with: 


  U.S.L.&H. minimum limits  $1,000,000 or  $     .   
  Jones Act minimum limits  $1,000,000 or $     . 


  Crime Insurance/Employee Theft with minimum limits  $2,000,000 per occurrence.  
  Technology E&O Insurance with minimum limits   $1,000,000 per occurrence.   
  Network Security/Cyber Liability (Cyber Protection) with minimum limits   $3,000,000 each wrongful act. 
  Other:        with minimum limit $      


 
         When required by HIGH Risk Elements: 
Laura Park            Sheila Barker     12/8/2015 


City Purchasing    Date   Risk Management    Date 



file:///C:/Users/barkers/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Keeper%20of%20the%20Forms/Insurance%20Transmittal%20Sheet.2.2015.doc




